
 

  Page 1 of 3 
December 7, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
ELECTRONIC MEETING 
December 7, 2021 7:00 P.M. 

 
This Agenda is in Accordance with Town Code §2-6 F (3) 

 
Please Be Advised That This Meeting Will Be Simulcasted on the Town of Dover’s 

YouTube Channel found online here: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7DBVyMoQEXu1U0Z_BkaBHA 

 
Zoom Information – Phone      Zoom Information - Computer 
Phone: 929-205-6099      Meeting ID: 899 3797 7693 
Meeting ID: 899 3797 7693                           Passcode: Ph21T3 
Passcode: 425430 
 
A) CALL MEETING TO ORDER / SUNSHINE STATEMENT – Mayor Carolyn Blackman 
to call meeting to order and read the Sunshine Statement: 
 
“This meeting is being held in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act, also known as the 
Sunshine Law, N.J.S.A. 10:4-6.  Notice of the meeting was sent to the Daily Record and Star 
Ledger on January 10, 2021 and published in the Record and Ledger on January 13, 2021.  
Notice of the location change, that the meeting was going to be held by Zoom was published in 
the Ledger on October 30, 2021 and the Record on November 1, 2021.  Notice was also posted 
on the Bulletin Board of the Municipal Building.”   
 
B) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Carolyn Blackman to lead those in attendance in the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag  
 
C) ROLL CALL – Acting Municipal Clerk to Conduct Roll Call: 
 

Name Present Absent Excused 
Alderman Correa    
Alderman Tapia    
Alderman Ballesteros    
Alderwoman Rugg    
Alderwoman Cruz    
Alderman Valencia    
Alderman Quinones    
Alderwoman Wittner    
Mayor Blackman    

 
D) APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
      1) Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 26, 2021. 
 



Page 2 of 3 
December 7, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda 

 
E) REPORT OF COMMITTEES 
 
F) PRESENTATIONS, MUNICIPAL CORRESPONDENCE 
1) Correspondence from Morris County concerning the award of a grant for the East      
Blackwell Open Space Acquis ion 
2) Correspondence from RVRSA concerning Public Hearing regarding User Fees  
 
G) ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING 
 
H) ORDINANCES FOR SECOND READING, PUBLIC HEARING AND ADOPTION 
 
I) APPROVAL OF BILLS 
      1) Approval of Bills List (Res. 258-2021) 
 
J) APPROVAL OF RESOLUTIONS 
      1) CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTIONS 

1) Res. 259-2021 – Res. Authorizing Water Refund for Overpayment in the amount of 
$1,093.93 for account #102950-0. 
2) Res. 260-2021 – Res. Approving Chapter 159 Regarding Drive Sober or Get Pulled 
Over Grant in the amount of $6,000.  
3) Res. 261-2021 – Res. Amending Res. 254-2021 Approving Chapter 159 for a grant 
award from the Governor’s Council on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse (Increase grant 
award amount to $7,755.00).  
Authorizing the Procurement of Furnishings for the Library Renovation in an amount of 
$207,946.93 under State Contract.   
3) Res. 262-2021 – Res. Authorizing the Disposal of Public Property (Radios)  

 
      2) RESOLUTIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION 

 
K) OLD BUSINESS   
 
L) NEW BUSINESS   
     1) NEW BUSINESS ITEMS  
          a) Administration Report – Administrator John O. Bennett III / Mayor Carolyn Blackman 
         
     2) ITEMS REQUESTED FOR DISCUSSION BY INDIVIDUAL ALDERMEN  
 
M) PUBLIC COMMENT:   
The Town of Dover highly values the input of residents in making important decisions that affect 
the residents of our community. We also believe in the rights of residents to observe Governing 
Body Meetings. To ensure that all of our residents have the opportunity to offer comment, each 
statement/comment shall be held to a time period of five (5) minutes. Public comment has been 
solicited via the following manners: 
 
All comments must include your name and residential address at the beginning of your 



Page 3 of 3 
December 7, 2021 Regular Meeting Agenda 

comment. 
 

1) By hand delivery - Comments may be submitted by hand deliver at Town Hall, 
located at 37 N. Sussex Street, Dover, NJ 07801 addressed to Acting Municipal Clerk 
John P. Schmidt. Comments may be dropped off during normal business hours, which 
are 8:30a.m. to 4:30p.m. up until 1:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
 

2) By mail - Comments may be submitted by mail to Town Hall, 37 N. Sussex Street, 
Dover, NJ 07801 addressed to Acting Municipal Clerk John P. Schmidt. Comments 
must be received by 1:00 p.m., on the day of the meeting. 

 
3) By email – Comments may be submitted until 1:00p.m. on the day of the meeting via 

email to publiccomment@dover.nj.us. The Subject of the Email Should be as follows 
“Public Meeting Comment” followed by the date of the meeting and Name. Example: 
Public Comment 12/7/2021 John Public. 

 
4) All comments submitted in writing must include your name and residential address at 

the beginning of your comment.   
 
5) Members of the public may also comment during the public comment portion by 

raising their hands via the Zoom platform, or if participating via phone by dialing *9 
on your telephonic device. After commenting, please dial *9 again to lower your 
hand.  All members of the public who wish to comment must state their name and 
residential address after being recognized to speak.  

 
Public comment portions of our agenda are not structured as question and answer sessions, but 
rather they are offered as opportunities to share your thoughts with the Mayor and Board of 
Aldermen. The Mayor and Board will attempt to engage in dialogue but may not be able to 
respond to all public comments.  However, all comments are considered and will be investigated 
and addressed as appropriate. 
 
If you have a question that we are unable to answer at the Meeting, feel free to submit your 
questions to the Business Administrator or the Office of the Municipal Clerk, in writing, and 
include your name, address and telephone number where you can be contacted. The email 
address of the Business Administrator is jbennett@dover.nj.us and the email address of the 
Clerk’s Office is doverclerk@dover.nj.us. Questions will be answered within a reasonable time. 
 
Please be courteous and mindful of the rights of others when providing comments. Comments 
may not be abusive, obscene or threatening. All members of the public attending Mayor and 
Board of Aldermen Meetings must treat each other and the Mayor and Board of Aldermen with 
respect. Individuals offering comments are not permitted to make personal attacks on any Town 
Employees, the Mayor or any Member of Town Government, other testifiers or members of the 
public.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



 

ADOPTED: 12/7/2021  

RESOLUTION NO. 258-2021 
BILL LIST RESOLUTION 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover have examined all bills presented for 
payment; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer has certified that there are sufficient funds in the account(s) to which 
respective bills have been charged. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover do 
hereby approve the bills as listed; and 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the proper officials are hereby authorized to sign the checks for payment of 
same.  
  
CURRENT APPROPRIATIONS RESERVE ACCT claims in the amount of: $900.00 
CURRENT APPROPRIATIONS ACCT claims in the amount of: $763,374.12 
GENERAL CAPITAL ACCT claims in the amount of: $150,484.50 
WATER UTILITY RESERVE ACCT claims in the amount of:  $0.00 
WATER UTILITY ACCT claims in the amount of: $4,562.35 
WATER CAPITAL ACCT claims in the amount of: $0.00 
PARKING UTILITY RESERVE ACCT claims in the amount of: $0.00 
PARKING UTILITY  ACCT claims in the amount of: $4,673.14 
PARKING CAPITAL ACCT claims in the amount of:  $0.00 
ANIMAL CONTROL TRUST ACCT claims in the amount of: $0.00 
EVIDENCE TRUST ACCT claims in the amount of: $0.00 
RECYCLING TRUST ACCT claims in the amount of: $552.00 
COUNTY FORFEITED ASSETS TRUST ACCT claims in the amount of: $0.00 
FEDERAL FORFEITED ASSETS ACCT claims in the amount of: $0.00 
TRUST/OTHER ACCT claims in the amount of: $14,545.50 
UNEMPLOYMENT TRUST ACCT claims in the amount of: $0.00 
TOTAL CLAIMS TO BE PAID $939,091.61 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following claims have been paid prior to the Bill List Resolution in the 
following amounts: 
  
TRUST/OTHER ACCT claims in the amount of: $0.00 
CURRENT APPROPRIATIONS ACCT claims in the amount of: $0.00 
GENERAL CAPITAL ACCT claims in the amount of: $0.00 
WATER UTILITY OPERATING claims in the amount of: $558.78 
TOTAL CLAIMS PAID $558.78 

  
TOTAL BILL LIST RESOLUTION $939,650.39 

  
ATTEST:                                                                                         TOWN OF DOVER, COUNTY OF MORRIS 
  
______________________________                                    __________________________________ 
John P. Schmidt, Acting Municipal Clerk                                          Carolyn Blackman, Mayor                      

 
DRAFT



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 259-2021 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF 
DOVER, COUNTY OF MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY AUTHORIZING A 
REFUND TO COCOCARE PRODUCTS INC. FOR A WATER OVERPAYMENT  

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Dover was notified of a water overpayment by Cococare Products, 
Inc. on water account #102950-0, 85 Franklin Road, Unit 2, Block V0001, Lot 1.02, in the 
amount of $1,093.93; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Dover Water Commission has recommended a refund to Cococare Products, 
Inc. for said overpayment; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town 
of Dover, County of Morris and State of New Jersey that a refunding in the amount of $1,093.93 
is authorized to be made to Cococare Products, Inc., P.O. Box 311, Dover, New Jersey 07801 for 
an overpayment of water account #101950-0, 85 Franklin Road, Unit 2, Block V0001, Lot 1.02.   
 
 
ATTEST:       TOWN OF DOVER 
 
              
John P. Schmidt, Acting Municipal Clerk   Carolyn Blackman, Mayor 
 
         ADOPTED: _____________ 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
I, John P. Schmidt, Acting Municipal Clerk of the Town of Dover in the County of Morris, State 
of New Jersey, do hereby Certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true copy of the Original 
Resolution duly passed and adopted by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover 
at its meeting on December 7, 2021. 
 
__________________________   
John P. Schmidt    
Acting Municipal Clerk 
 DRAFT



DRAFT



 
RESOLUTION NO. 260-2021 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 

TOWN OF DOVER, COUNTY OF MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY APPROVING 
CHAPTER 159 REGARDING 2021 DRIVE SOBER OR GET PULLED OVER AWARD 

 
WHEREAS, N.J.S. 40A: 4-87 provides that the Director of the Division of Local Government 
Services may approve the insertion of any special item of revenue in the budget of any county or 
municipality when such item shall have been made by law and the amount thereof was not 
determined at the time of adoption of the budget, and 
 
WHEREAS, said Director may also approve the insertion of any item of appropriation for equal 
amount, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town of Dover hereby requests the 
Director of the Division of Local Government Services to approve the insertion of an item of 
revenue in the budget of the year 2021 in the sum of $6,000.00; which item is now available as 
revenue from the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 2021 Drive Sober or Get 
Pulled Over Year End Holiday Crackdown, and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a like sum of $6,000.00 be and the same is hereby 
appropriated under the caption of: 
   Public and Private Programs Offset by Revenues 
 
                          
ATTEST:       TOWN OF DOVER 
 
              
John P. Schmidt, Acting Municipal Clerk   Carolyn Blackman, Mayor 
 
         ADOPTED: _____________ 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
I, John P. Schmidt, Acting Municipal Clerk of the Town of Dover in the County of Morris, State 
of New Jersey, do hereby Certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true copy of the Original 
Resolution duly passed and adopted by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover 
at its meeting on December 7, 2021. 
 
__________________________   
John P. Schmidt    
Acting Municipal Clerk 
 

 DRAFT



RESOLUTION NO. 261-2021 

RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE 
TOWN OF DOVER, COUNTY OF MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY AMENDING 

RESOLUTION NO. 254-2021 APPROVING CHAPTER 159 FOR GOVERNOR’S 
COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM AND DRUG ABUSE 

WHEREAS, N.J.S. 40A: 4-87 provides that the Director of the Division of Local Government 
Services may approve the insertion of any special item of revenue in the budget of any county or 
municipality when such item shall have been made by law and the amount thereof was not 
determined at the time of adoption of the budget, and 

WHEREAS, said Director may also approve the insertion of any item of appropriation for equal 
amount, and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Department has advised there is a need to amend Resolution 254-2021 
concerning the amount because of an increase in funds; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town of Dover hereby amends Resolution 
No. 254-2021 and requests the Director of the Division of Local Government Services to 
approve the insertion of an item of revenue in the budget of the year 2021 in the sum of 
$7,755.00; which item is now available as revenue from the Governor’s Council on Alcoholism 
and Drug Abuse; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town of Dover hereby amends Resolution No. 254-
2021 that a like sum of $7,755.00 is hereby appropriated under the caption of: 

Public and Private Programs Offset by Revenues 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town of Dover hereby amends Resolution No. 254-
2021 that the sum of $1,938.75 representing the amount required for the municipality’s share of 
the aforementioned undertaking appears in the 2021 budget appropriated under the caption of: 

Administration OE 

ATTEST:          TOWN OF DOVER, COUNTY OF MORRIS 

_________________________________ ____________________________________ 
John P. Schmidt, Acting Municipal Clerk Carolyn Blackman, Mayor 

ADOPTED: _______________ DRAFT



CERTIFICATION 
I, John P. Schmidt, Acting Municipal Clerk of the Town of Dover in the County of Morris, State 
of New Jersey, do hereby Certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true copy of the Original 
Resolution duly passed and adopted by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover 
at its meeting on November 23, 2021. 
 
__________________________   
John P. Schmidt 
Acting Municipal Clerk  

 

DRAFT



 
RESOLUTION 262-2021 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF 

DOVER, IN THE COUNTY OF MORRIS, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AUTHORIZING 
DISPOSAL OF PORTABLE RADIOS TO N.J.S.A. 40A:11-36 

 
WHEREAS, the below listed radios are no longer useful for the day-to-day operations; and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Dover desires to dispose of  these radios, which is permitted pursuant to 
N.J.S.A. 40A:11-36 within the Local Public Contracts Law, which permits the disposition of personal 
property no longer needed for public use; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover, 
County of Morris, and State of New Jersey, that it does hereby authorize and direct the disposal of the 
said fowling radios in such manner as is reasonably necessary, consistent with the authority granted 
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-36 to dispose of personal property no longer needed for public use. All 
necessary Town personnel are hereby directed to do all things necessary to effectuate the disposition of the 
radios as aforesaid. 
 
Fire Department Portable Radios Motorola APX6000XE Serial Numbers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:                                   TOWN OF DOVER, COUNTY OF MORRIS 
_____________________________                      _____________________________________ 
John P. Schmidt, Acting Municipal Clerk             Carolyn Blackman, Mayor 
 
     ADOPTED:_______________ 
 

CERTIFICATION 
I, John P. Schmidt, Acting Municipal Clerk of the Town of Dover in the County of Morris, State of New 
Jersey, do hereby Certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true copy of the Original Resolution duly 
passed and adopted by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen of the Town of Dover at its meeting on 
December 7, 2021. 
__________________________   
John P. Schmidt    
Acting Municipal Clerk 

756CSM1475                                                              
756CSM1476 
756CSM1477 
756CSM1478 
756CSM1479 
756CSM1480 
756CSM1481 
756CSM1482 
756CSM1483 
756CSM1484 

756CSM1485 
756CSM1486 
756CSM1487 
756CSM1488 
756CSM1489 
756CSM1490 
756CSM1491 
756CSM1492 
756CSM1493 
756CSM1494 

756CSM1495 
756CSM1496 
756CSM1497 
756CSM1498 
756CSM1499 
756CSM1500 
756CSM1501 
756CSM1502 
756CSM1503 
756CSM1504 

756CSM1505 
756CSM1506 
756CSM1507 
756CSM1508 
 

DRAFT


	12.7.21 Agenda
	12.7.2021 Agenda Packet W
	12.7.2021 Agenda Packet V1
	E Blackwell open space fund acquisition COR
	RVRSA Cor Public Hearing User Fees 12.9
	Res. 258-2021 12.7.21 Bill List Resolution
	Res. 259-2021 authorizing water refund
	Res. 259-2021 authorizing water refund BACKUP
	Res. 260-2021 Driver Sober or Get Pulled Over Ch. 159
	Res. 261-2021 Res. Amending 254-2021 Ch. 159 Governors Council on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse
	Res. 262-2021 RESOUTION RADIO DISPOSAL





